
AMENDED 7-19-2010  9:45 AM 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 PROCLAMATION:  Council on Rural Services 
    Accepting: Ms. Shirley Hathaway 
 
 

AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  
 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the July 1, 2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session and 
the July 6, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting 

   
BB..  OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS      

 
a. ORD. NO. 22-10 (3rd Reading) 

 An Ordinance to change the street name of portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road 
 

CC..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
 

a. ORD. NO. 23-10 (1st Reading) 
 An Ordinance to vacate a portion of public right of way known as River Street 
 
b. RES. NO. R-87-10 

A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Francis Office Supply Inc. for various 
Office products 

 
c. RES. NO. R-88-10 

A Resolution awarding a contract to Springbrook Software, Inc. in an amount not to 
exceed $920,000 for a new integrated Municipal Information Software System 
including data conversion, training, implementation and annual maintenance fees 

 
       d. RES. NO. R-89-10 
  A Resolution accepting the resignation of Debra Osborne as a member of the Community 
  Diversity Committee  
 

DD..  OOTTHHEERR  
  
  
  



 2

  
EE..  AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  TTOO  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSEESSSSIIOONN  
  

a.   To prepare for and review negotiations on compensation or other terms and conditions of           
      employment for City personnel. 
 
b. To consider pending or imminent litigation. 
 
c. To consider the purchase or sale of property for public purposes. 

              
F. ADJOURNMENT 
 



A. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
                    JULY 20, 2010 
 

         
 Minutes – Approval of the minutes from the July 1, 2010 Piqua 
City Commission Work Session and the July 6, 2010 Regular 
City Commission Meeting 



  MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

July 1, 2010 
7: 00 P.M. 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
Piqua City Commission met in a Special Work Session in the Commission Chambers in the Municipal 
Government Complex, 201 W. Water Street   Mayor Fess called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Also 
present were Commissioners Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Absent: Vogt.  Also in attendance: City Manager 
Fred Enderle, Police Chief Bruce Jamison, City Law Director Stacy Wall, Bob Bloom, Jim Cruse and Will 
Sanders. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to excuse Commissioner Vogt from the 
July 1, 2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Fess. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss Automated Traffic Enforcement. 
 
Police Chief Bruce Jamison gave a brief overview of the Automated Traffic Enforcement program, stating he 
would like to get a consensus from the Commission if they are on board with the program by the end of the 
meeting. 
 
Chief Jamieson stated we have fewer officers on the streets now to issue citations, and the City of Piqua has 
to share the revenue received with Miami County on citations issued.  This would be a revenue 
enhancement for the City, but that is not the primary focus for the program.  The main reason is public 
safety.  Cameras have been proven useful in several other surrounding communities, utilizing them in 
various ways, said Chief Jamieson. 
 
Locations for the cameras was discussed with Chief Jamison stating he feels the locations should not be set 
by an Ordinance, but by the City Manager designating the location with the recommendation of a committee 
or the Commission.  Law Director Wall explained if done by an ordinance it could be defined to give the City 
Manager the authorization to set the location.  Commissioner Martin stated he read that red light cameras 
cause more accidents. Chief Jamison stated he would be interested in reading the information 
Commissioner Martin spoke about. 
  
There was discussion on the use of the Speed Trailer, Phantom Police Car # 39, and the hand held Radar 
Gun, and how effective they have been in the past.  The use of signs notifying motorist they were entering a 
Speed Zone, and the various locations the cameras could be mounted was explained.   
 
Chief Jamison stated the Police Department issued 1,666 traffic violations in 2009, and estimated if the 
cameras are installed the number would raise to 2,500 to 3,500 annually, with a projected revenue of around 
$150,000 to $320,000 possible. 
 
Chief Jamieson explained how the citations would be issued and who would receive them.  The owner of the 
vehicle would be issued the civil citation, not the driver of the vehicle at the time of the violation. There is no 
way to distinguish who is driving the vehicle, said Chief Jamieson.  Commissioner Wilson asked if it could be 
proven he was not the driver at the time of the citation would he still receive it.  Chief Jamieson stated yes. 
The citation is issued to the registered owner of the vehicle, regardless who was driving it at the time of the 
violation. 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall stated the citations issued through the camera system would be civil not criminal, 
and explained the difference between a civil and a criminal citation. Ms Wall further stated with the civil 
citation the owner would not receive points on their license, and their insurance companies would not be 
notified.  It was stated it is the registered owners responsibility to pay the citation.  Chief Jamison stated 
other surrounding counties also cite the registered owner.   
 
Chief Jamison explained how the automated traffic enforcement would be set up, and what the benefits 
would be to the City of Piqua if they decide to pursue the use of the cameras.  The vendor would supply the 
cameras at no cost to the City and would receive a set portion of the fees collected.  There was discussion 
on nonpayment of the fees and how it would he handled.  Chief Jamison stated the camera footage would 



be reviewed either by the vendor, or by a Police Officer in the Police Department, Chief Jamison explained 
the difference and the benefits of having a local officer reviewing the footage. 
 
Chief Jamison cited several trouble locations that would benefit from the use of the cameras, such as 
Looney Road and Ash Street, Covington Avenue and Sunset Drive.  It was stated with the use of the 
cameras in these high traffic areas officers would not have to be sitting and could be assigned to other 
areas. 
 
Commissioner Wilson voiced his concern over the use of the cameras stating he feels it could become a big 
issue with citizens and the image of the city.  Mayor Fess stated we need to help the Police Department do 
more with less, and would like to put the information out to the community first.  Commissioner Wilson stated 
he would like to get the reaction of the community first and get more information before making any decision.  
Commissioner Wilson asked if either Troy or Sidney have looked into this type of enforcement?  City 
Manager Enderle stated no, not that he was aware of, but they have more Police Officers on the streets. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated he would schedule another Study Session to review the Automated Traffic 
Enforcement System in a few weeks after receiving feedback from the community. 
 
Mayor Fess stated community safety is the first priority.  It was the consensus of the Commissioners present 
to seek public feedback and to receive more information before making any commitments at this time. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Piqua City 
Commission Work Session at 8:50 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Hudson and Terry. Nay: None.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

     ______________________________ 
                  LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
    
 
 



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday July 6, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the June 15, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting. 

 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that the minutes of the Regular 
City Commission Meeting of June 15, 2010 be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Terry, Martin, 
and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Old Business 
 
ORD. 15-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Chapter 55 of the Piqua Municipal Code Stormwater Management  
  
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of the Ordinance, and briefly stated this clarifies 
the billing. Single family properties shall be billed on a per unit basis at one (1) ERU per month and 
duplexes, will be billed on a per unit basis of one-half (1/2) an ERU per month. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Al Grau, Greene Street, came forward and voiced his opinion and concerns with the Stormwater 
Management and the maintenance that would be required in order to sustain the Stormwater system. 
It needs to go back to the way it was, said Mr. Grau. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 15-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 15-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 17-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed amendment to Piqua Charter Sections 66 and 
68 Police and Fire Services 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of Ordinance 17-30 and is the result of the 
Charter Review Committee’s recommendations. 
 
Section 66: Police Force.  Shall Charter 66 be amended to eliminate the mayor’s responsibility in an 
emergency with regards to the command of the Police Department. 
 
Section 68: Fire Force.  Shall Charter Section 68 be amended to eliminate the mayor’s responsibility in 
an emergency with regards to the command of the Fire Department. 
 



 2

City Manager Enderle gave a brief summary of the ordinance and stated Ordinance No. 17-10 and the 
next two Ordinances 18-10 and 19-10 are the recommended changes made by the Charter Review 
Committee.  These changes include: 
 

 Section 5:   President of Commission, Mayor 
 Section 6:   Salary of Commission Members and Mayor 
 Section 8:   Rules of Commission 
 
 Section 32:  Removal of Officers and Employees 
 Section 41:  Qualifications and Duties of Law Director 
 
 Section 66:  Police Force 
 Section 68:  Fire Force   
 

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No.17-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Ordinance No. 17-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 17-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 18-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed amendment to Piqua Charter Sections, 5,6 
and 8 The Commission 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 18-10, and is also a result of the 
Charter Review Committee recommendations. 
 
Section 5  President of Commission, Mayor:  Shall Charter Section 5 be amended to eliminate the 
authority of the mayor to take command of the police department in time of emergency. 
 
Section 6  Salary of Commission Members and Mayor:  Shall Charter Section 6 be amended to 
eliminate the vice mayor being paid the mayor’s salary during absences of the mayor. 
 
Section 8  Rules of Commission:  Shall Charter Section 8 be amended to specify reason when a 
commission member may be expelled from City Commission. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No.18-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 18-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 18-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. NO. 19-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed amendment to Piqua Charter Sections 32 and 
41 Administrative Service 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 19-10, and is also a result of the 
Charter Review Committee recommendations. 
 
Section 32  Removal of Officers and Employees:  Shall Charter Section 32 be amended to require that 
any employee who is to be laid off, suspended or removed receive written notice. 
 



 3

Section 41  Qualifications and Duties of Director of Law:  Shall Charter Section 41 be amended to 
require the director of law to have five years of experience as a practicing attorney rather than two 
years. 
 
The proposed changes are in the interest of the City in defining how an employee is to be notified of a 
layoff, suspension or removal and increasing the qualifications of the law director. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No 19-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 19-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 19-10 adopted. 
 
ORD. No. 22-10 (2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to change the street name of portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road 
 
City Manager Enderle gave a brief explanation on the reason for the requested changes, and stated 
the Planning Commission unanimously recommended this change.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 22-10. 
 
After a brief discussion Ordinance No. 22-10 was given a second reading. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
RES. NO. R-79-10 
 
A Resolution rescinding Resolution No. R-78-10. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is a resolution rescinding Resolution No. R-78 that was changed 
from an Ordinance to a Resolution at the June 15, 2010 Piqua City Commission Meeting.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-79-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-79-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-79-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-80-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Cargill, Inc. for the purchase of road salt for the Street Department 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution awards a contract to Cargill, Inc. for the purchase of road 
salt for the Street Department for the 2010-2011 winter season.  This will allow the City to purchase 
road salt at a very competitive rate, by participating in the joint bid through the SWOP4G. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-80-10. 
 



 4

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-80-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Martin, Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-80-10 adopted. 
 
 
RES. NO. R-81-10 
 
A Resolution endorsing the multi-county Advantage Sharing Program proposal 
 
Economic Development Director Bill Murphy gave a brief explanation on how the Advantage Sharing 
Program works, and the benefits the City of Piqua would receive from belonging to the program. 
 
The Advantage Sharing Program provides grant funding available for participating jurisdictions in order 
to help promote economic and workforce development activities in the communities in the region. The 
grant funding must go to any project that helps create or retain jobs in the region and stipulates that 
25% of the funding must be paid back to the Advantage Sharing Program.   
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-81-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-81-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-81-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-82-10 (Public Hearing) 
 
A Resolution accepting for statutory purposes a budget for the calendar year 2011 
 
City Manager Enderle gave a brief overview of the revenues and expenditures. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-82-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-82-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, Wilson, and Vogt.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-82-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-83-10 
 
A Resolution establishing “ Trick or Treat/Beggars’ Night” in the City of Piqua 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this establishes “Trick or Treat/Beggar’s Night” in the City of Piqua, and 
this would be observed all over Miami County the same evening. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-83-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-83-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, Fess, and Vogt.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-83-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-84-10 
 
A Resolution appointing members to the Stormwater Utility Board 
 



 5

City Manager Enderle stated this appoints five members to the Stormwater Utility Board for various 
terms. 
 
There was a brief discussion of the appointees and if any of the Commissioners would set on this 
board.  City Manager Enderle stated the Stormwater Utility Board will act like the Planning 
Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals to set policy changes and rate increases. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-84-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-84-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: Martin.  Motion carried on a 4-1 vote.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-84-10 adopted on a 4-1 vote. 
 
RES. No. R-85-10 
 
A Resolution for the sale of Parcel No. N-44-250379 
 
City Manager Enderle explained the reason for the sale of the property, stating it is not a suitable 
building lot. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-85-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-85-10 be 
adopted.  Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Vogt, Terry, Wilson, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-85-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-86-10 
 
A Resolution approving the Transportation Review Advisory Council applications to the Ohio 
Department of Transportation for calendar year 2010 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this resolution authorizes the filing of the City of Piqua’s Transportation 
Review Advisory Council application with the Ohio Department of Transportation.  The application 
requests funding to add an additional lane of travel on Interstate 75 from State Route 41 in Troy to the 
County Road 25-A (Exit 83) interchange located in Piqua. City Manager Enderle stated this is also 
supported by Troy and Miami County.  The City of Piqua is willing to commit $15.58 million (which is 
20% of the total project cost) for the multi-year project that should start no earlier than January 2014.   
The total project cost has been estimated to be $77.94 million. 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained the difference between the Tier I and Tier II phase. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-86-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-86-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-86-10 adopted. 
 
OTHER 
 
Monthly Reports – May 2010 
 
Monthly Reports for May 2010 were accepted. 



 6

 
 
Economic Development Update 
  
Presented by – Mr. Bill Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Director of Economic Development 
 
Mr. Murphy gave a brief power point presentation on several new developments that have occurred 
recently. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Bill Hogston, Greene Street, President of the Piqua Firefighter’s Local 252 came forward and voiced 
his concern and opinion on the recent announcement of the possible layoff of two firefighters in 
September 2010. Mr. Hogston read a prepared statement with his concerns. Mr. Hogston stated, “he 
was forced to come here tonight to take a stand because I have a moral objection and grave concerns 
about your treatment of the Piqua Fire Department and your plans to cut public safety in our city.”  Mr. 
Hogston further stated “ we have come to realize that the City government and this commission in 
particular cannot be trusted to honor their word or to honor a binding agreement that they affixed their 
signatures to.”   Mr. Hogston stated it was his understanding that in exchange for the firefighters 
agreeing to forgo raises during 2009 and 2010, that funds for the departments wages and benefits 
would be budgeted until the end of the year, meaning the end of 2010.  Mr. Hogston commented on 
the editorial written by City Manager Enderle that appeared in the Piqua Daily Call on Monday, July 5, 
2010 regarding the impact of the budget cuts in the Fire Department citing the NFPA standards. 
 
Mayor Fess stated both the Police and Fire Officers and Departments in Piqua are among the best in 
the region, and are highly trained and dedicated.  Mayor Fess further stated she is not at all happy 
about the fact there may be layoffs, but Safety Services are 74% of the General Fund Budget.   
Resolution No. 83-09 signed by the Commission and the Firefighters, in Section 1 the Memorandum of 
Understanding was to be in effect through 8-31-09.   
 
Law Director Wall stated there would not be a legal debate over the interruption of the Resolution and 
Memorandum of Understanding at his time.  Ms. Wall stated she has advised the city that it means 
contract year and the resolution clearly states that it is tied with the contract through August 31, 2010.  
The Memorandum of Understanding also indicates in Section 2, Other, that the parties agree that all 
the remaining articles terms and conditions go through the August 31, 2010.  The Memorandum of 
Understanding would not exist without the contract; they go hand in hand, said Ms. Wall. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she does not feel the Commission let the Firefighters down, they were told if they 
would come up with a certain dollar amount in cuts there would be no layoffs.  Mr. Hogston stated that 
it is his understanding to that was what was negotiated on last September.  This is not a good time, 
whether you are a citizen, or are on the Fire or Police Department when 76% of the General Fund is 
dedicated to the Police & Fire, said Mayor Fess. City Administrators and Department Heads have not 
had a raise in three years, they have forgone those raises in order to help with the city budget. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated botht he Police and Firefighters and Offiicers agreed to one year back, 
while others agreed to three years, while everyone else has taken a hit on insurance and other 
benefits that the firefighters and officers have not agreed to take. We cannot sustain the cost of 
personal at this given pace, there has to be cutbacks.  If benefits and salary cuts are not being taken 
the only alternative is a reduction in personal, said City Manager Enderle.  The Fire Department 
needed to make $41,000 in sustainable cuts out of the Fire Department budget in 2010, and they did 
not make them. Recently Assistant Chief Rick Maggert was able to come up with the $41,000 cuts, 
and asked  City Manager Enderle if by coming up with the required amount of cuts as asked, would it 
mean no layoffs in 2010?  City Manager Enderle stated he told Assistant Chief Maggert, yes, and 
Assistant Chief Maggert asked if he could tell the officers that. City Manager Enderle stated yes, but 
that 2011 is another story and that goes for every employee in the City of Piqua.  It is going to take the 
City of Piqua at least five years at best to get back to the 2008 revenues. 
 



 7

Mayor Fess asked if all of the firefighters responded when called in for the fire on June 26, 2010. Mr. 
Hogston stated he could not answer that.  Mayor Fess stated she understood some firefighters work 
second jobs, and that they do not respond when called in.  Mr. Hogston stated he did not know what 
the case was, but some of the firefighters come in and some don’t. Mayor Fess further stated the City 
has to pay the State 19% of the firefighters wages into their pension, no other employee has that 
amount paid for them, and now the State is asking the City to raise the amount to 24%.  We need to 
keep the safety services strong, and we do appreciate the firefighters taking the wage freeze along 
with the Administrators and Department Heads.  We all need to work together to make this happen. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated we are ok for the moment, but if revenues continue to dip he cannot 
guarantee that they will not be looking for more cuts elsewhere. We have a two million dollar deficit 
now, and need to make sense of what we have. 
 
Commissioner Vogt asked if the citizens of Piqua would support a ¼% income tax for the safety 
services?  Mr. Hogston stated no, he did not believe the citizens would support a ¼% income tax at 
this time.  Mr. Hogston further stated the firefighters made an agreement with the City Manager and 
the City Commission and there is obviously a dispute over what the agreement is.  
 
Commissioner Vogt stated Assistant Chief Maggert came up with the $41, 000 cuts necessary to keep 
the Fire Department going until the first of the year. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she is sorry that the firefighters feel the City let them down, but according to the 
Law Director the City did not leave them down, that this is a difference of opinion and we have to 
agree to disagree.  Mayor Fess further stated from her standpoint she would do everything she can to 
make sure the fire department stays strong. When the budget is done this year, I will do everything we 
can to be sure both Police and Fire get all that can be provided for them.  We can’t say that is all you 
are going to want, and we may not get all you want, said Mayor Fess. 
 
Mr. Hogston inquired as to the comment on keeping the fire department strong and to protect public 
safety, does it mean having fulltime professional firefighters or looking at alternatives?   We have 
discussed volunteers but that is something we do not want to go to. It is still on the table, and 
something we have to look at, said Mayor Fess.    Mayor Fess further stated the Commission has not 
talked seriously about using volunteer fireman.  Commissioner Vogt stated he has been on the City 
Commission for seven years and has never heard anything about using volunteers. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the other employees have given up their right to cash in sick leave, and other 
things to meet their budget targets, and asked that the firefighters work with the city to.  Mr. Hogston 
stated just to clarify this, those employees did not give up these things, they really do not have a 
choice, these are non-represented employees.  Mayor Fess stated they did have a choice to make a 
commitment to find the dollars to meet the target they were given.  If we can’t meet your demands you 
can always find another fire department, and we don’t want you to do that, we want all of the 
firefighters, but we just don’t have any alternatives to offer at this time, stated Mayor Fess 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward to voice his opinion on the use of the Automated Traffic 
system in the City of Piqua. 
 
Mr. Boehringer also voiced his opinion on the City Administration not taking cuts. 
 
Tom Caserta, W. High Street, came forward to voice his opinion on the Fire Fighters and Police 
Department.  Mr. Caserta stated that when you start messing with the troops you are messing with the 
morale. Mayor Fess stated she supports the firefighters and the police department one hundred 
percent, and will do everything she can to make sure they stay strong and are compensated, as they 
should be.  However, it comes down to the fact there is just so much money in the coffers, and we 
have to do what we have to do, said Mayor Fess. 
 
 
 
 



 8

City Commission Comments 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he is concerned about the way the city is being portrayed in the 
newspaper on  going back on their word or that the City and the Commissioners are against public 
safety.  Every Commissioner wants public safety and wants a strong Police and Fire Department. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he likes the new look of the Hance Pavilion, citing it was a joint effort to 
getting the work done. Commissioner Vogt thanked the Parks Department and the city employees for 
doing such a good job.  Commissioner Vogt voiced concern over a letter in the Piqua Daily Call in 
regards to the Piqua Firefighters and how the Commission was treating them.  Commissioner Vogt 
also voiced concern over the number of homes with high grass and trash, stating this all reflects a bad 
image on the City of Piqua.  Commissioner Vogt stated maybe the Commission should consider a ¼% 
tax levy for Public Safety. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the 4th of July Committee for putting on another wonderful event in Fountain Park 
and for the outstanding fireworks display. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked the Firefighters stating the Police and Fire have a direct impact on the City.  
Mayor Fess stated she appreciates both the Police and Fire Departments, and feels the Commission 
did not let the firefighters down, stating these are tough times. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked all the Firefighters present at the meeting for attending. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Piqua City 
Commission Meeting at 9:05 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
          _____________________________ 

                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



B. OLD BUSINESS 
    JULY 20, 2010 

 
 Ord. No. 22-10  (3rd Reading) 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 22-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE THE STREET NAME OF PORTIONS OF BRIDGE 
STREET AND STATLER ROAD 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has met to study a request to change 

the street name of portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met in open sessions and took public 

comment regarding the recommended changes; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the request and 

considering the public comments and information provided, recommended that the 

street name of the subject public right of way improvements be recognized as 

Garnsey Street; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, street name changes 

must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1:  This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

change the street name of portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road public right 

of way improvements to Garnsey Street; said name change affecting only those 

portions of public right of way improvements located within the city of Piqua 

Corporation Limits, and said portions of public right of way improvements being a 

continuous through street beginning at the intersection of Main Street and 

Garnsey Street and ending at the intersection of Staunton Street and Statler 

Road, as being as further described on the attached exhibit. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause notice of the street name 

change to be served to all property owners contiguous to the affected portions of 

street and road right of way. 

SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the street name of the affected portions of public 

right of way improvements. 



SEC. 4:  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from 

and after the earliest period allowed by law 

 

Renamed at 6/15/2010 Regular City Commission Meeting as: 
Resolution No. R-78-10 
2nd Reading 7-6-2010 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
PASSED:   _______________________   

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of June 15, 2010 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
  
SUBJECT: Recommended Renaming of Portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road 
 
PURPOSE: 
Act on Planning Commission recommendation to rename a portion of Bridge Street and 
Statler Road right of way within the City of Piqua corporation limits to correct a street 
name/address assignment discrepancy. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Ordinance to change the name of a portion of Bridge Street and Statler Road to 
Garnsey Street.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Currently the referenced portions of Statler Road and Bridge Street are posted as Garnsey 
Street and the parcels adjacent to this segment of roadway located inside the City limits use 
Garnsey Street and Bridge Street address assignments.  While the subject roadway segment is 
one continuous through street, official plat and construction right of way records reflect the 
roadway as being two separate roadway segments with two separate names, neither of which 
reflect the street name posted.  Because of this discrepancy problems arise when the occupants 
of the properties located on this stretch of roadway request a response from safety service 
agencies, utility companies, and others, or simply try to have a pizza delivered to their 
residence.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance and accept Planning Commission recommendation to rename the 

subject portions of right of way. 
2) Defeat the Ordinance and leave the street name discrepancy unresolved. 

DISCUSSION: 
The proposed street name change originated with a request by the residents along this segment 
of roadway that the street name be studied.  After examining the available records and 
collecting the pertinent information, it became quite evident that discrepancies existed with 
regards to the applicable street name for this corridor.  The proposed street name was 
presented to the Planning Commission in an open session and public comment was invited.  
All three of the property owners of the single family dwelling units located along this roadway 
segment attended the meeting and spoke in favor of the proposed street name change.  The 
only other affected property is occupied by a commercial structure that is currently vacant.  



 Page 2 
 

The Piqua Materials business located on the south side of the roadway is outside of the city 
limits and is not affected by the proposed change.  Nonetheless, the Business Manager for the 
Piqua Materials facilities was contacted by phone by city staff and informed of the street name 
change being discussed.  The Piqua Material representative we spoke with was supportive of 
the planned street name change and registered no objections. 
 
The proposed street name change, if approved, will reflect the street name already used by the 
general public to refer to this stretch of roadway and will modify the necessary documents to 
make official the street name currently in use.  This action will remedy a condition that, at the 
very least, is an inconvenience to the affected property owners, and at its worst may result in 
dire consequences.  The Piqua Materials property located across the roadway is located 
outside of the city limits and the address assignment for this business will not be affected by 
the proposed change.  Changing the street name will result in a change to the street name 
currently being used as the mailing address at 3 of the 4 affected properties.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The proposed street name change will have no fiscal impact on the City.  
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The proposed street name change will improve public health and safety and will have a 
positive effect on the surrounding property owners or the interest of the general public. 
     
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed street name change is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and 
policies, including the Goal, Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land 
Use and Transportation chapters of the Plan It Piqua Comprehensive Plan document.  
 
 
 
 
 



E
X

H
IB

IT

P
or

tio
n 

of
 R

oa
dw

ay
 to

 b
e 

R
en

am
ed

 G
ar

ns
ey

 S
tre

et

B
R

ID
G

E
 S

TR
E

E
T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
R

ID
G

E
 S

TR
E

E
T 

A
N

D
 S

TA
TL

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 N
A

M
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E



C.     NEW BUSINESS 
             JULY 20, 2010 
 

 Ord.No. 23-10 (1st Reading) 
 Res. No. R-87-10 
 Res. No. R-88-10 
 Res. No. R-89-10 



ORDINANCE NO. 23-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PORTION OF PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY KNOWN 
AS RIVER STREET 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. 72-10 declaring its intent to vacate a portion of public right of 

way known as River Street; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open sessions and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments and information provided, recommended approving the 

vacation of a portion public right of way known as River Street, as shown on the 

exhibit and the vacation plat drawing attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of a portion public right of way known as 

River Street, as shown on the exhibit and the vacation plat drawing attached 

hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected portion of the subject public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

 
 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of July 20, 2010 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
  
SUBJECT: Recommended Vacation of a Portion of River Street Public Right of Way 
 
PURPOSE: 
Act on Planning Commission recommendation provided in response to City Commission 
declaration of intent to vacate a portion of River Street right of way. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission has recommended approval of an Ordinance to vacate the subject 
portion of River Street right of way.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Unity National Bank owns a parcel known as 218 – 218 ½ E. North Street and desires to sell 
the parcel.  The parcel is occupied by a two family dwelling unit principal structure and a 
private garage accessory structure.  The accessory structure encroaches into platted public 
right of way located at the rear of the property.  The platted right of way width is 
approximately 40 feet and is identified as River Street.  The improvements to this right of way 
are more typical of what one would commonly refer to as an alley, not a street.  The alley 
improvements favor the northern half of the right of way width and the accessory structure 
encroachment is situated on the southern half of the right of width and does not interfere with 
the alley improvements.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance to vacate the subject portion of River Street. 
2) Defeat the Ordinance and refuse to vacate the subject portion of right of way. 

DISCUSSION: 
The proposed vacation will result in vacating of the southern half of the subject right of way 
adjacent to the rear of 218-218 ½ E. North Street.  This will allow for the vacated right of way 
being joined with the subject parcel, which will eliminate the encroachment condition that 
currently exists.  This in turn will provide the property owner with a “clean title” and ease the 
process of selling the parcel and transferring title to the land.   
 
In accordance with section 98 of the City Charter, the Planning Commission has conducted a 
public hearing to consider any objections to this request and study its merits.  At the public 
hearing there were no objections presented and the Planning Commission determined the 



 Page 2 
 

subject portion of right of way is not essential to the public infrastructure systems maintained 
in this area.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Approving this request will have no fiscal impact on the City.  
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The proposed vacation would have an adverse affect on the surrounding property owners or 
the interest of the general public. 
     
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed vacation is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and policies, 
including the Goal, Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land Use and 
Utilities chapters of the Plan It Piqua Comprehensive Plan document. 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-87-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE 
ORDER TO FRANCIS OFFICE SUPPLY INC. FOR 
VARIOUS OFFICE PRODUCTS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 34.19 of the Piqua Code permits the purchase of 
supplies for City departments without advertising when, in the judgment of the City 
Purchasing Analyst, advertising would not be of any material economic benefit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the operation of Piqua City Government necessitates the 
purchase of various office supplies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Francis Office Supply Inc. has been determined to be the best 
vendor for this purpose; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized in the amount of 
$50,000 to Francis Office Supply Inc. for the purchase of various office products; 

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director is authorized to draw her warrant on the 

appropriate account of the city treasury in payment for said services rendered not to 
exceed $50,000; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of July 20, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Frederick E. Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Beverly M. Yount, Purchasing Analyst 
  
SUBJECT: Francis Office Supply (FOS) Annual Purchase Order Adjustment Request 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Resolution No. R-87-10 approving the Annual Purchase Order with Francis 
Office Supply to be increased from $24,000.00 to $50,000.00 for the 2010 budget year. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Resolution No. R-87-10 approving the Annual Purchase Order 
with Francis Office Supply to be increased from $24,000.00 to $50,000.00 for the 2010 budget 
year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We have used Francis Office Supply for general office supplies for many years and have 
always been pleased with their pricing and customer service.  We currently use an annual 
purchase order with them for anything a department purchases for less than $500.00.  Each 
department places their own orders and is responsible for spending within their allowed 
budgets.  In past years we have done a Resolution to allow us to spend over the $25,000 limit 
with them.  Last year, for example, we spent $53,723.24 with Francis Office Supply. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1)  Approve Resolution No. R-87-10 approving the Annual Purchase Order with Francis 
Office Supply to be increased from $24,000.00 to $50,000.00 for the 2010 budget year. 
2)  Do not approve the Resolution and require us to use Staples or Office Depot for all of our 
office supply needs. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to remain in compliance with our purchasing policy. 
2)  This alternative would force us to find another possible supplier which we would need to 
satisfy our three quote requirement.  This additional supplier may or may not be any cheaper 
than FOS, but there are no other alternatives within the City limits that I am aware of. 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)   The City will be spending money on office supplies that are needed throughout the rest of 
the year.  This allows us to get the best prices for these items and support a local business. 
2)  The City could possibly spend more money if we choose to go with this alternative since 
FOS would not be an alternative even though their prices may be cheaper. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
We also have annual purchase orders set up with Staples and Office Depot.  This still allows 
each department to get three quotes on all purchases to ensure that we are getting the best 
prices on what we are ordering.  Our local preference policy encourages us to use businesses 
within the City whenever they are within 5% of the next closest price.  We try to order from 
FOS as much as we can since it is a local business. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
Passage of this Resolution will allow us to continue operating with our purchasing policy 
guidelines.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-88-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO SPRINGBROOK 
SOFTWARE, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$920,000 FOR A NEW INTEGRATED MUNICIPAL INFORMATION 
SOFTWARE SYSTEM INCLUDING DATA CONVERSION, 
TRAINING, IMPLEMENTATION AND ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 
FEES. 

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC. 1: The Commission hereby deems it necessary to replace the 
municipal information system. 
 

SEC. 2: A contract for said computer software is hereby awarded to 
Springbrook Software, Inc. as the best, responsible proposer and the City Manager 
is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said proposer pursuant to contract 
specifications. 

 
SEC. 3: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 

warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $920,000.  
 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of July 20, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  Dean Burch, Information Technology Director 
  
SUBJECT: New Integrated Municipal Information Software System Including Data 

Conversion, Training, Implementation and Annual Maintenance Fees 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Resolution No. R-88-10 allowing the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Springbrook Software, Inc. for the purchase of a new integrated municipal information 
software system including data conversion, training, implementation and annual maintenance 
fees.  The request for authorization includes approximately 15% contingency for items of 
work which may be required which are not included in the original plans and specifications. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
We are requesting approval of Resolution No. R-88-10 allowing the City Manager to enter 
into a contract with Springbrook Software, Inc. for the purchase of a new integrated municipal 
information software system including data conversion, training, implementation and annual 
maintenance fees.  Springbrook has developed their software exclusively for the public sector.  
It is robust, user-friendly, task oriented and gives the user control to design their own 
workflows, processes and reports.  Citizens will be able to make payments and view or request 
information online.  Department processes will be streamlined and the system will provide 
useful information.  Springbrook currently serves over 400 communities nationwide.  The 
privately owned company has been in business for 25 years.  They believe in a partnership 
philosophy allowing the communities they serve to weigh in on future product development 
and enhancements.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Our current AS400/System 36 was purchased in 1995, the technology and the operating 
system are approximately 30 years old and has gone beyond its life cycle.  Since that time, 
very few dollars have been spent on the system.  Our system lacks current technological 
enhancements and efficiencies.  Initially the AS400 was designed more for manufacturing, 
medical, and distribution fields.  While it is a processing workhorse, it is not user friendly nor 
able to readily provide useful and needed information.  Based on the increased processing 
demand of the City in recent years, it has reached its maximum capacity.  While the support 
for this system ended years ago, the IT Dept. has been able to make fixes to get us by.  Now 
the time has come for us to purchase a replacement system which would be shared, integrated 
and user-friendly. 



 
Our goals for the new computer system include to streamline our operations by increasing the 
productivity of existing personnel and to provide policy makers with essential management 
information.  We will also enhance our services by providing employees with effective tools 
to successfully deliver the services of government to citizens and other departments.  We will 
contain and/or reduce our costs by increasing our efficiencies.  It will also provide clear cost 
and service justifications for services provided to citizens.  The Springbrook software will 
allow processes to be done within departments at their own pace and schedule, they will no 
longer be dependent on IT.  We will have online retrieval and document attachment options.  
The system will be able to provide reports that are useful and real-time.  If we would ever 
have a need for disaster recovery, the Springbrook server will remotely set up City operations 
within 48 hours.  These are just a few of the highlights of the new system that will be shared 
by all City Departments. 
 
Approximately two years ago, we formed an internal computer committee to lead the search 
for a new municipal information software system.  Most every aspect of our city government 
will be improved including Utilities Billing, Purchasing, Payroll, Human Resources, Finance, 
Fixed Assets, Inventory, Work Orders, Code Enforcement, Building Permits, Grant 
Accounting, etc.  These are areas used significantly by most City departments. 
 
Barry Strock and Associates was hired to help guide us through this process.  We received full 
system proposals from the following companies: Springbrook Software, Inc., Tyler 
Technologies, Inc.-Munis, Tyler Technologies, Inc.-Incode Solution, Cogsdale Company, Inc. 
and partial system proposals from CRW Systems, Inc., Business Automation Services Inc., 
and Creative Microsystems, Inc.  All of these vendors provided a live product demonstration 
for our computer committee and other end users.  Based on staff and committee feedback to 
the demonstrations, Munis and Springbrook were evaluated to be the two top picks.  These 
two companies provided us another more advanced demonstration, after which we went on 
two site visits to other communities using these software packages.  After these visits, we 
determined Springbrook was the best fit for us and so in May 2010, Cindy Holtzapple, Lisa 
Cavender and Robin Hungerford visited Springbrook’s headquarters for their annual users 
conference and independent meetings.  They were able to meet and speak with first hand users 
of the system.  This experience helped to solidify our choice of Springbrook as the right 
company for us.  Mr. Strock also accompanied us for the individual company meetings and 
negotiations. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
1) Approve Resolution No. R-88-10 allowing the City Manager to enter into a contract with 

Springbrook Software, Inc. for the purchase of a new integrated municipal information 
software system including data conversion, training, implementation and annual 
maintenance fees. 

2) Do not approve the Resolution and accept the risk that our computer system will 
eventually not be able to accommodate our every day work needs such as Utility revenue 
billing and collection, general accounting, paying vendors and payroll for employees.   

 
DISCUSSION: 
1) We plan to move forward quickly.  The business plan study phase would begin almost 
immediately with Finance to be the first department to make the switch over.  We plan to run 



a parallel system during each module implementation to ensure that everything is working as 
it should. 
2) This alternative will hamper the ability of our City employees to be productive and efficient 
and eventually the AS400/System 36 will no longer be able to support our operations.  Some 
examples of this are the Utility Business Office operations lacking the ability to expand to add 
the Storm Water Utility to the citizen’s utility bill.  We had to take off information just to get it 
to fit on the current monthly billing statement.  They also need more information options to 
store data on the large power customers.  Document archival will allow them to keep 
signatures, id pictures, etc. with the account information rather than in a drawer in the 
basement.  Human Resources currently is a very manual process.  They keep all paper records 
for worker’s compensation, pension, etc. Retaining paper requires significant storage space for 
all departments.  The Springbrook software would guarantee compliance with all local, state 
and federal regulations.  Our Finance Dept. currently takes our AS400 reports and puts the 
information into self made Excel programs to generate monthly financial reports and the 
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR).  These processes literally take hours upon 
hours of staff time to generate.  The new computer software, once set up, will generate these 
types of departmental reports on command with little input or adjustments required by our 
employees. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  There is $1,000,000 budgeted for this purpose in the 2010 budget.  While some of this 
money is set aside for computer hardware, we are only requesting funds for the software 
portion and annual maintenance fees at this time.  The expense is estimated to be funded 65% 
from Enterprise Funds, 31% from General Funds and 4% from the Street Fund.  We are not 
going to the open market to borrow.  We are planning to borrow internally from non-operating 
funds to pay for this purchase over a ten year period.  The borrowing is from funds not 
available for yearly general operating expenses.  The advantage is these funds are currently 
earning low interest rates and we will pay ourselves a higher market rate keeping the dollars 
within the City rather than paying an outside financial institution the interest. 
2)  The City would not be able to put a price tag on the money lost through time and 
inefficiencies.  Our revenue stream would be completely cut-off if the Utility Billing and 
General Government systems went down.  These are both run entirely on the AS400 system 
currently.   
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Once we are converted over to our new software system, our processes will be more 
streamline and efficient.  We would be able to provide better customer service in terms of 
speed, accuracy and knowledge.  At their convenience, citizens will be able to view or make a 
payment on their utility account online.  Our processes will involve less paper copies and be 
mostly electronic which is excellent for the environment and saves us money in copy, paper 
and postage costs. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The new integrated Municipal Information Software System supporting all Utility, Enterprise 
and General Accounting functions has been included in the City’s budget for the last two 
years which reaffirms that City Management and the Commissioners understand the need for 
this replacement of our computer software.   
 





























































































































                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-89-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION  
                         OF DEBRA OSBORNE AS A MEMBER OF THE 

         COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE  
 

 
WHEREAS, Debra Osborne was appointed to the Community Diversity 

Committee on July 20, 2009 by Resolution No. R-62-09; and 
 
WHEREAS, Debra Osborne submitted a letter of resignation to the 

Community Diversity Committee on Tuesday, July 6, 2010. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby accepts the resignation of Debra 
Osborne as a member of the Community Diversity Committee. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 




